TARIFFS AND TRADE

RESTRICTED

GENERAL AGREEMENT ON C/M/4

14 March 1961

Limited Distribution

COUNCIL

MINUTES OF MSETTINGS

Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,

Subjects discussed:

From 22 February - 2 March 1961 - —

Chairman: Mr. J.H. WARREN (Canada)

1.

3.
4.
5.
6.
T
8.

10.
11.
12.

13.

14.

15,

16.

17,

18.
19.

20.
21,

22.

Membership of Council . o + ¢ o o o o o o oo
adoption of agenda « o o ¢ o o s s e e e o0 g e
Provisional accession of Switzerlend . . . . &
Application of Article iV to Japan .« o « o+ &
German import restrictions .« « « o o o o o o o
Jtalian import restrictions . « o+ « o« » « « o &
Australian import restrictions .« « o o o o o
Residual import restrictions - procedures . . .
Ceylon import restrictions and tariff increases
Indonesian tariff reform . « ¢ ¢ » s o o ¢ » &
Uruguayan import surcharges . « « o « o o o o &
Continued application of schedules -
Decision of 19 November 1960 . « 4 ¢ ¢ o o
Completion of renegotiations under §o
Article LIVITI:1l o & o o o o o o o o s o o &
Australian schedule - renegotiations under
Article ZCIVITII:4 o 4 v o o o o s o o o o o
Organization for Economic Co~eperation: and
Development . « o o o o. o o « o o o o o o o @

‘Commercial policy problems of newly-independent

States &+ o ¢ s o 4 o o 6 9.0 6 s e e s 0 s
Central American Free Trade Area .+ + « « + o+ .
French stamp taX +:e v ¢ o o a2 ¢ s o o o o o &
Italian measures in -favour of domestic

production of ships' plates « o o « o o & o
Committee on avoidance of market disruption . .
Arrangements for sessions of CONTRaCTING

PARTTES --3..-..0.---0000-',.

Future work of Council .+ « ¢ o o o+ s % o o o »

' rd
A o
H E -PI\)t"\OOZJ\]O'\-PI\)f\)ng

=
(6]

15
17
20
20

20
20

21

.. 23



c/M/4
Page 2

L Membership of Council

The Chairmen informed representatives that Nigeria had now become a
member of the Council. Further, as important matters affecting their customs
tariffs and schedules were to be discussed at the present meetings, Ceylon and
Indonesia had requested that they be co-opted when the items concerned were
under discussions; this wsas noted,

2. Adoption of agenda (C/6/Rev.l)

With reference to the proposed item 12, the Executive Secretary referred
to the note which had been distributed to representatives (Spec(61)45) on the
subject of commercial policy problems of newly-independent countries. He
outlined what he.-had in mind in making-'the proposals contained in the note.

The provisional.aéehda, including the item referred to by thé fxecutive
Secretary, was adopted. ’ '

3. Provisional accession of Switzerland (L/1384)

In the Declaration on the Provisional Accession of Switzerland, the
Government_of-Switzerland undertook that, following the entry into force of
the Declaration, it wpu;d"cbnéult‘with the CONTRACTING PARTIES with a view to
finding solutions compatible with the basic principles of GATT to the problems
in respect of which Switzerland found it necessary to make reservations on the
application of certain Articles of the General agreement. The major problem
related to the measures taken by the Swiss Government for the protection of
its national agriculture pursuant to the Federal Law of 3 October 1951. The
consultation was. ipitiated at the seventeenth session and the statement then
made by the representative of Switzerland was distributed in document L/1384.

The representative of Switzerland recapitulated some of the mzin points )
in the statement he had made at the seventeenth session (L/1384). Inter alia ~

he stressed that the protective measures used by Switzerland were the minimum
necessary to maintain,a hard-core of Swiss agricultural production; that the
Swiss agricultural population, manual workers and the number of farms were

consistently deelining, while the increase in productivity was only sufficient

to mointiin griculturcl incomes; thot switzerland's ugrieulturcl mclicy .8

neither exp.msionist nor..ggressive; thut, on o per capito brsis, Switzere

land was a-very large importér'of agricultural products; that, as the
increase in agricultural production was well below the world average and as
the Swiss population was increasing, agricultural exporting countries could
count on the stability of the Swiss market. The representative of Switzerlcnd
then discussed the statistics of Swiss imports of agricultural, fishery and
forestry products in 1960, which had been distributed during the meeting of
the Council; he pointed out that, excluding State trading, Switzerland com-
plied with the requirements of Article XI in respect of a 1 .rge propor-

tion of such imports. In conclusion, the repissentative of Switzerland asked
that, bearing in mind the generally liberal character of Swiss import policy,

——#A




c/M/a
Page 3

Switzerland's particular situation and the desirability of a realistic
approach being made to this problem, the CONTRACTING PARTIES should try to
find a formula which would permit Switzerland's full accession to the GATT,

In the general discussion which followed various views were expressed.
While it was recognized that the full accession of Switzerland to the GATT
was most desirable, the suggestion that Switzerland should te given what
amounted to a permanent derogation from Article XI gave rise to concern on the
part of several representatives, It was pointed out that, while it was true
that certain contracting parties had been granted temporary waivers in the
agricultural sector, they still had obligations which applied to all sectors
| of their trade. To grant a country a permenent derogation from the provisions
| of Article XI was a different matter and would establish a most undesirable

precedent. It would create a serious imbalance between rights and obligations

and would run counter to the whole GATT concept of reciprocity. It was not

sufficient to talk about mainteining the present degree of access to the Swiss

market; there had to be an expectation of increasing access for agricultural
1 exporters. It was not unreasonable to suggest that Switzerland should take
positive steps to align its system more closely to that required by GAIT as a
precondition to possible full GATT membership.

Some representatives expressed the view that, as the work of Committee II
T was still in progress, the status quo in respect of Switzerland's position
should be maintained pending the outcome of the Committee's work. There was
a suggestion that to reach a settlement of the case of Switzerland at this
stage might prejudice the conclusions of Committee II and other current work
of the CONTRACTING PARTIES in the agricultural field. Other representatives
felt that it might be possible to work out a formula providing for Switzerland's
full accession to GATT, while leaving the problems involved in the Swiss
agricultural restrictions to be settled when the final conclusions of
@ Committee II were available. Others thought there might, in any case, be
; scope for modifying the existing relationship between Switzerland and the
+ CONTRACTING PARTIES. One representative expressed the view that it should be
possible to work out a formula which provided for Switzerland's full accession
and which was so defined, in the light of Switzerland's very special historical,
geographical and topographical situation, as not to create a precedent for the
future.

Following the discussion, it was decided that the exchange of views in
the Council should be followed by informal meetings between Switzerland and
interested contracting parties. The Council was later informed that, during
1 these meetings, contracting parties had asked the Swiss representatives
additional questions about various aspects of Swiss agricultural policy, while
the discussion had also covered a number of suggestions as to how progress
might be made in finding solutions to Switzerland‘’s reservation in a manner
which would be in conformity with the General Agreement.

Finally, the Council agreed that the consultation with Switzerland in
accordance with the terms of the Declaration on the Provisional Accession
of Switzerland should be continued. For this purpose, a small group of
contracting parties, drawn mainly from important agricultural exporters to
; the Swiss market was sppointed, with the following membership:




c/M/4

Page 4
Australia Netherlands
Canada New Zealand
Denmark United States
France Uruguay

Other contracting parties whieh considered that they had an important interest
in the products covered by Switzerland's reservations in the Declaration would
be free to participate in the work of the group.

The group would meet on 6 and 7 April. It was felt that it should be
possible for the group, at that meeting, to suggest a time-table for further
discussions with Switzerland, on the completion of which it would submit a
report either to a meeting of the Gouneil or to a session of the CONTRACTING
PARTIES, whichever was the earlier.

4, Application of Article XXXV to Japan (C/5, C/8, C/9)

At the seventeenth session, the Japanese Government requested the
CONTRACTING PARTIES to review the operation of Article XXXV insofar as it had
been used in connexion with the trading relations between a number of contrac-
ting parties and Japan. Provision for such a review is made in paragraph 2 of
the Article. The CONTRACTING PARTIES agreed that a review should be carried
out, but the Council was asked to make recommendations regarding the scope and
timing of the review. To facilitate the Council's consideration of this
question, the Executive Secretary put forward certain proposals in document c/5.

After the Executive Secretary had explained to the Council the scope and
intention of his proposals, the representative of Japan put forward certain
further suggestions; inter alia he proposed the establishment of a working
party at the May session of the CONTRACTING PARTIES and the preparation of
material for the working party by the secretariat in the meanwhile. The text
of the statement of the representative of Japan was distributed in document c/8.

There was general support in the Council for Japan's proposal that a
working party be established and some representatives urged that the working
party should meet at an early date and complete its task by May. There werse,
however, differing views in the Council as regards the terms of reference that
should be given to such a working party. Some representatives considered it
essential that, if a true understanding of the problems involved was to be
reached and solutions to those problems found, the causes underlying the
invocation of Article XXXV should be examined. Other representatives said
they would find such a proposal unacceptable, on the grounds that Article XXXV
was an integral part of the General Agreement and could not be considered in
isolation. Further, the view was expressed that the review should
ossentially be of a factual charseter and@ that it should not impinge
en the work aof the Cormittee on Market Disruption, Several representa--
tives stressed the need to examine the effeets of the invocation of '
Article XXXV on Japan's trade and on the trade of contracting parties generally;
any such examination should not be confined to the effects on Japan's trade and

-

J




@

c/M/4
Page 5

on the trade of those contracting parties which invoked Artiele XXXV, There
was agreement that there was no question of the working party, if it were
established, considering the revision of Article XXXV.

Following this initial discussion, the Council appointed a small group of
contracting parties to meet and report back to the Council. The recommendation
of the group concerning the terms of reference of the proposed working party
were distributed in document C/9. The Executive Secretary explained that,
vhile the headings proposed in document C/9 represented a simplification of
those proposed both in the secretariat paper (C/5) and by the representative
of Japan (C/8), they did not mean the exclusion of other elements relevant to
the review. As regards the gquestion of the timing of the review, the group
considered that this should be left to the meeting of the Council in March.

At that time it would be decided whether or not there should be a session of
the CONTRACTING PARTIES in May and arrangements regarding the establishment of
the working party could be made in the light of that decision.

Certain representatives underlined the importance they attached to the
fact that the proposed terms of reference in document C/9 should be regarded
only as guldelines for the working party. In their view it would be in order
for a member of the working party to propose examination of the basic problems
which had resulted in the invocation of Article XXXV; in fact, such examina~
tion might flow from the examination of the background material to be prepared.
Moreover, any appropriate recommendations which might emerge would need to take
into account the experience and attitudes adopted by those contracting parties
which had not had resort to Article XXXV, while the phrase "existing trade
relationships" should, they considered, be regarded as going beyond formelity
or legality and oovering the actual trading opportunitiss provided by countries.

It was agreed that:

(1) the Council should decide, at its meeting towards the end of March,
either to recommend to the May session of the CONTRACTING PARTIES
that a working party be established at that session or, if it was
decided that the CONTRACTING PARTIES should not meet in May, the
Council should itself proceed in May to esteblish a working party
to meet at an early date;

(£1) the terms of reference of the working party should be as follows:

l. Against the background of a report by the Executive Secretary
on the origins of Artiele XXXV and a factual account of its
application in the case of Japan, to review under paragraph 2
of the Article as requested by the Government of Japan, the
operation of the Article in this case, with particular reference
to:

(a) the existing trade relationships between Japan and
each of the countries which have invoked Article XXXV;




S

(b) the effects of the invocation of Article XXXV on
Japan's trade and the repercussions on the trade of
other contracting parties;

c/M/4
Page 6

(e¢) the widespread invocation of Article XXXV vis-a-vis
Japan by governments acceding to the GATT under
Article XXVI:5(c) and Article XXXIII.

2., To submit a report on this review together with any proposals
the working party may wish to put forward as to recommendations
that might appropriately be made by the CONTRACTING PARTIES
pursuant to paragraph 2 of Article XXXV. ‘

(i1i) paragraph 1(a), (b), (c) of the terms of reference should only be

regarded as guidelines for the working party and the discussion of )
other relevant matters would not be precluded. y

(iv) the secretariat should be requested to put in hand preparation of
the necessary documentation.

The representative of Austria reserved the position of his delegation as
regards the possibility that the Council, and not the CONTRACTING PARTIES
themselves, might decide to set up a working party.

5. German import restrictions

' At their seventeenth session, the CONTRACTING PARTIES held a consultation §

with the Government of the Federal Republic of Germany under the terms of
ph 3 of the Decision of 30 May 1959. In the report on the consultation

(L/1380, paragraph 22) it was noted that the Governments of Australia and
Uruguay were at that time holding direct discussions with the German Government
regarding acoess to the German market for their exports and reserved their
right to revert to the question at the next session of the Council or of the
CONTRACTING PARTIES. The Australian Government had requested a discussion at \)
the present Council meeting. ’

The representative of Australia said that the bilateral discussions
between Australia and the Federal Republic of Germany referred to at the
seventeenth session had now been concluded. The outcome of the discussions
was unsatisfactory from Australia's point of view. While his delegation was
not requesting the Council to take any action on this matter at this stage, it
would be understood that Australia's dissatisfaction must inevitably affect his
Government's attitude when the next consultation with the Federal Republic under
the Decision took place in November 1961 and when the Decision expired in 1962.
The representative of Uruguay said that the position of Uruguay remained L

unchanged and his Government therefore continued to reserve its right to revert
to this question at a later date,

Some representatives, in stressing the need for all the terms of the
waiver to be fully observed, expressed the view that, during the next consulta-
tion with the Federal Republic, particular attention should be paid to exanining
the experience which contracting parties had had in connexion with paragraph
2(c) of the Decision.

R




h_f

((

(@

c/M/4
Page 7

6. Italian import restrictions

At the close of the discussion on Itallan import restrictions at the
seventeenth session the CONTRACTING PARTIES agreed that: '"Should the
Government of the United States, prior to the next meeting of the Council of
Representatives, request the CONTRACTING PARTIES to review the Italian import
restrictions which were no longer justified for balance-of-payments reasons,
the Chairman should promptly appoint a Working Party, representative of the
contracting parties for this purpose." '

The United States made such a request in a communication received on

13 February and the Chairman of the CONTRACTING PARTIES accordingly appointed
a Working Party with the following composition and terms of reference:

Composition
Chairman: Mr. B. SWARD (Sweden)

Members
Australia - Ghana - New Zealand
Belgium France Norway
Brazil _ Ttaly United Kingdom
Canada India United States
‘Denmark Japan Uruguay

Terms of reference

(i) To consider, on the basis of the request of the United
States, the Italian import restrictions which are no
longer justified for balance-of~payments reasons and
which were the subject of consultations under paragraph 1
of Article XXII; and

(i1) To report promptly thereon, as appropriate, to the Council.

The Chairman said it should be understood that the Working Party had
been established within the framework of parsgraph 2 of Artiele IZXII,

There was some discussion on the question of the venue for the meeting.
The Italian Government had requested that, exceptionally, the meeting of the
Working Party should be held in Rome. The view was expressed that only
exceptional reasons could justify the meeting being held elsewhere than in
Geneva. It was pointed out that the reasons adduced for holding the meeting
in Rome could equally be invoked in the future by other contracting parties
wishing a consultation of this sort to taeke place in their capitals; an undesiralie
precedent might thus be established. Some representatives thought it might be
difficult for their governments to provide adequate representation for a meet-
ing in Rome, particularly as a meeting of Committee III would be taking place
in Geneva at the same time. There was, in addition, the question of expense
both for delegations and for the secrétariat.







